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Board of Directors - A Brief Profile

Mr. Ismail Abdul Nabi Almarhoon
Chairman of the Board
Non-Independent / Non-Executive

Mr. Ismail Abdul Nabi Almarhoon is a Retired Asst. Undersecretary for Resources and
Information at Ministry of Finance. Mr. Almarhoon is Chairman of the Board of Gulf
Diabetes Center. He holds Master of Business Administration in Financial Management
from University of Dundee — UK, High Diploma in International Taxation from Southern
Methodist University — USA and Management Diploma from Gulf Technical College -

Bahrain

Mr. Nabeel Khaled Mohamed Kanoo
Vice Chairman of the Board
Independent / Non-Executive

Mr. Nabeel Khaled Mohamed Kanoo is Director, Corporate Marketing and Public Relations
at - Yusuf Bin Ahmed Kanoo, Board Member of YBA Kanoo, Saudi Arabia, Board Member of
YBA Kanoo, Bahrain, Board Member of Kanoo & EI-Shabrawy Ltd Co. Egypt, Board Member
of K Hotel, Board Member of Ithmaar Bank, Board Member of Bahrain Airport Services,
Board Member of Bahrain Labor Market Regulatory Authority. He Holds Bachelor degree in

Business Management from St. Edwards University, Austin, Texas.

Mr. Mohamed Abdulelah Alkoheji
Director
Non-Independent / Non-Executive

Mr. Mohamed Abdulelah Alkoheji is the Chief Executive Officer at Amlak Social Insurance
Organization Development Co., Board member of AHQ Holding Company W.L.L, Qalali Real

Estate Development Company and Southern Area Development Company.

He holds Master of Science in Management and Engineering, Passed with Merit from
Kingston University, UK. and Bachelors with Honors in Mechanical Engineering from the

same university.
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Board of Directors - A Brief Profile

Mr. Abdulla Nooruddin Abdulla Nooruddin
Director
Non-Independent / Non-Executive

Mr. Abdulla Nooruddin Abdulla Nooruddin is Director-Investment and Strategic Planning at
Amlak Social Insurance Organization Development Co. He Holds Master degree in Business
Information Technology from Northumbria University -UK, Bachelors degree in Arts and

Economics from Clark University — UK and he is a Chartered Financial Analyst.

Mr. Ali Abdulla Mohammed Isa
Director
Non-Independent / Non-Executive

Mr. Ali Abdulla Mohammed Isa is Executive Director, Business Analytics & Actuarial Studies
at Social Insurance Organization. He holds Bachelor of Science degree in Information

Technology and Diploma in Statistical Studies from Birla Institute of Technology.

Mr. Yusuf Abdulrahman Yusuf Fakhro
Director
Independent / Non-Executive

Mr. Yusuf Abdulrahman Yusuf Fakhro is the Managing Director of Yusif Bin Yusif Fakhro
B.S.C.(c), the President of Rotary Club of Sulmaniya, Chapter Chair of Young Presidents
Organization, Bahrain Chapter and the Board Member of Banader Hotels Co. B.S.C. He
holds Bachelor degree in International Relations with a cluster focus on International Trade

and Finance from Tufts University Boston, Massachusetts — USA.
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Board of Directors - A Brief Profile

Late. Ms. Aamal Hamad Al-Zayani (Passed Away on 25 - Oct - 2018)

Director

Non-Independent / Non-Executive

Ms. Aamal Hamad Al-Zayani was Portfolio Governance Manager at Osool Asset
Management and Board Member of Bahrain International Golf Course Company. She was
also a Board Member of Riffa Views Company. She Had obtained Masters in Business
Administration (MBA) with concentration in Finance from University of Bahrain and B.Sc.

in Banking and Finance from the same university.

Mr. Yaser Abduljalil Ali Alsharifi
Director
Independent / Non-Executive

Mr. Yaser Abduljalil Ali Alsharifi is the Chief Strategy Officer at National Bank of Bahrain.
He is a Board Member of Bahrain Bourse, board member of EDAMAH and board member of
Bahrain Clear. He holds B.Sc. in Business Administration and Accounting from University

of Massachusetts Amherst and he is a Certified Public Accountant.

Mr. Bader A S Alhasawi
Director
Non-Independent / Non-Executive

Mr. Bader A S Alhasawi is the Real Estate Operation Manager at Kuwaiti Real Estate
& Commercial Centre Co. (Al Sharjah Branch, HQ). He holds Diploma in Business

Administration & Diploma in Computer Science from Seattle University (USA).

Mr. Ali Mohammed Buhamood
Director
Non-Independent / Non-Executive

Mr. Ali Mohammed Buhamood is the Executive Manager at Kuwaiti Real Estate &
Commercial Centre Co. (Bahrain Branch). He holds B.Sc. in Political Science & Statistics

from Kuwait University.
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Profile of Executive Management

Tarig Ali Al Jowder
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. AldJowder has wealth of industry expertise of over 25 years of working with Bahrain
Defence Force (BDF) on logistics management and development, contracts management and
implementation, where he held a portfolio of senior executive responsibilities. After his retirement
from BDF, Mr. Aljowder served as Executive director-real estate at Abu Dhabi Investment House
where he was in charge of some major real estate projects. In 2009, he was appointed CEO of
Alreen Holding company BSC to manage a major mix-use development project in the south of
Bahrain, during his time at Alareen, he was Chairman of Alreen leisure & Tourism company a
subsidiary of Alareen Holding and also was Owners representative and Board Member of Alreen
Hotels SPC owning company of Alreen Palace resort & spa (Ex. Banyan Tree resort-Bahrain).
Mr. Aljowder was Executive Secretary and Board Member of Bahrain Property Development
Association and Executive Board Member at Takamul Capital BSC. Mr. AlJowder holds BSC in
Aerospace Technology Engineering from Northrop University, Los Angeles-California, and MBA
from American University Washington DC.

Ageel Hasan Abdulrahim
Operations Director

Mr. Ageel has over 16 years of engineering experience and success leading facilities and
operations management services innovation for high-growth organisations. He started as
Operations Supervisor at GPIC (Gulf Petrochemical Industries Co.) handling petrochemical plants
and Export Facilities. He then moved on to BAPCO (Bahrain Petroleum Co) as a Mechanical
Engineer handling major Utilities plants and all MEP services of AWALI Town and surrounding
premises of BAPCO. Prior to joining Bahrain Car Park co as Operations Director, Aqeel spent the
last nine years with the MAF Dalkia / ENOVA Group in Bahrain as Facilities Operations Manager
responsible for signature real estate development project RIFFA VIEWS as well as handling the
mobile teams managing other buildings and facilities. Also, he has been supporting in MAF Dalkia
operations across middle east.

His education includes a B.Sc. in Mechanical Engineering, with professional certificates holding
PMP (Project Management Professional) and FMP (Facilities Management Professional).

Mahmood Husain Yaseen
Finance Director

Mr. Mahmood Yaseen has more than 15 years of extensive experience in a gamut of core financial
and operational audit practice within the financial services, telecom, aviation and insurance, in
addition to risk assessment. Prior to joining Bahrain Car parks Mr. Yaseen held a number of key
positions during his professional careers including Head of Internal Audit for Bahrain National
Holding and Mena Telecom where he established the internal audit department, executing risk
assessment technique and accountable to the audit committee for the production of accurate,
well researched reports on the risks as planned on a timely manner. His experience also includes
the role of Country Auditor and Regional Senior Auditor - GCC and Cyprus at BNP Paribas Bank.

Mr. Yaseen is a qualified Certified Public Accountant from California Board of Accountancy
(USA) and Certified Internal Auditor from Institute of Internal Auditor (USA). He holds a B.Sc. in
Accounting from University of Bahrain.
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Chairman’s Report

Dear Shareholders,

During the year, the Company’s performance has shown improvements in the operation as compared to the previous
year. This is evident through the operating income for the year 2018 amounted BD 1,220,166 as compared to BD
1,112,047 in 2017 which has improved by BD 108,119.

During the year investment income amounted to BD353,272 as compared to BD401,777 in 2017, the major variance
due to relatively higher unrealised fair value gain on equity instruments during 2017. Further, there is a change in
the classification of Company’s investment in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
rather than through profit or loss as the Company considers this measurement to be the most representative of the
Company's business model. The Board has concentrated its investment in companies whereby the capital is almost
guaranteed and carry low risk but that requires a longer holding period for income to be realised.

In addition, the Company generated interest on fixed deposit amounting to BD 178,944 (2017: BD 152,614) and
investment properties value increase by BD 10,684 compared to 2017.

In light of the achieved results along with balance of retained earnings brought forward from the previous years,
the total amount available for appropriation for the year ended 31 December 2018 aggregated to BD3,363,876 from
which the board of directors proposes the following appropriations:

Transfer of BD 72,203 to statutory reserve, being 10% of the net profit for the year.

A dividend of BD 346,514 which represents 5% of the share capital i.e. 5 Fils per share.
Directors’ remuneration of BD 30,332

Transfer of BD 10,000 to charity reserve

Balance of BD 3,017,362 remains in retained earnings.

SAEESEEC A

We would like to inform our shareholders that directors remuneration for the year 2018 of BD 30,332 will be paid to
the Board of Directors during 2019.

In addition, the Company and Bahrain Real Estate Investment Company (“Edamah”), real-estate arm of the sovereign
wealth fund of the Kingdom of Bahrain, have signed a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU") to evaluate potential
grant of a (99 years) usufruct right with automatic renewal in a car park building owned by Edamah to the Company.
The consideration for transfer of such ownership and rights is proposed to be settled through issuance of new shares
in the Company (“transaction”). The MoU allows for mutual exploration of terms and pricing for transaction which, if
agreed, and subject to receipt of requisite regulatory, shareholders and board approvals, may lead to Edamah owing
a stake in the Company.

On the occasion of presenting this Annual Report, |, on behalf of the Board of Directors would like to express
gratitude and appreciation to His Majesty, King Hamad Bin Isa Al Khalifa - the King of Bahrain, and to his wise
Government under the leadership of His Royal Highness Prince Khalifa Bin Salman Al Khalifa - the Prime Minister
and to His Royal Highness Prince Salman Bin Hamad At Khalifa - the Crown Prince, Deputy Supreme Commander and
First Deputy Prime Minister for their continued support to the Company.

| would also like to thank all members of the staff for their hard work during the year.

—

Ismaeel A. Nabi Al Marhoon
Chairman
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Chairman’s Message

Dear Shareholders of Bahrain Car Parks Company, i

In my capacity and on behalf of the Board Directors, the Executive management and all '3
employees of the Company, we offer you our sincere greetings and heartfelt gratitude and 1

wish you and our country Bahrain a very happy New Year full of affection and harmony.

Dear Shareholders,

Bahrain Car Parks Company unequivocally appreciates that continuous success would grow and nurture through the
provision of high-quality services that meet the level required by our society, which seeks continuous progression.
Therefore, our continuous commitment right from the day we assumed the responsibility of the chairmanship of the
Company was about utilizing innovative and smart methods and solutions that lead to the development of the
Company and the society as a whole. This certainly will contribute positively in our Company’s emergence and
its ability to catch up with the pace of development and progression of this era, without compromising our static
principles in giving our Bahraini citizens tangible opportunities to manage the Company and maintain the rates of
Bahranization.

The unique steps the Company has taken towards developing work mechanisms and keeping abreast with the latest
technology of parking business management have both had major impact on the operations of the Company. They
will definitely have a direct impact on its business in the years to come. We consider the development of Company's
operations and the deployment of very advanced parking systems as an “investment into the future” and that with
no doubt recoup massive rewards to investors instantaneously and in the future.

We express our commitment to adopt the highest standards of transparency and corporate governance - in accordance
with the standards required by the Central Bank of Bahrain, the Ministry of Industry, Commerce and Tourism and

Bahrain Bourse — committing ourselves to the effective and sustainable development in line with Vision 2030.

Dear Shareholders,

Today, as we approach the 38th anniversary of the establishment of our adored Company, we strive together to
earn the position described as being trustworthy, dynamic, and face-to-face interactive with the community we are
proudly serving. We are sure that our efforts will be more fruitful in the imminent future. With this conviction, our
Company seeks to enter into new partnerships and open new doors to extend and develop its business, in order to
assume other activities in addition to the management of car parking business, and that will enforce its constant
and persistent effort to respond to the needs of the community in this field while consolidating the principle of

sustainable development and effective participation as part of our strategic mission.
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Dear Shareholders,

With deep regret and great sorrow, we mourn the passing of two of the most prominent members of our former and
current Board of Directors. A prominent businessman and a former MP Mr. Jassim Mohammed Murad who passed
away last January. He was one of the former members of the Board of Directors that spared no time or effort to
build the Company and establish its structure. The Board of Directors of the company was also saddened by the loss
of Ms. Aamal Hamad al-Zayani, a member of the current Board of Directors, who passed away last October. She has

been known for her great character and highest ethics, may their souls both rest in peace.

In conclusion, we would like to extend our sincere thanks to the wise leadership of His Majesty King Hamad bin
Isa Al-Khalifa and His Royal Highness Prince Khalifa bin Salman Al Khalifa, the Prime Minister - and to His Royal
Highness Prince Salman bin Hamad Al Khalifa, the Crown Prince, Deputy Supreme Commander and First Deputy

Prime Minister, may God protect them all.

Our sincere gratitude to our shareholders and clients for their support and confidence. We pledge to continue to
work hard in order to achieve all Company’s objectives and realize its mission to accomplish unremitting success.
We also would like to extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to the members of the Board and the Executive
Management and to all of our staff for their sincere efforts and relentless hard work, wishing them all continuous

attainment, success and prosperity.

May Allah preserve the Kingdom of Bahrain under the guidance of our wise leadership, for our country to stay always

as a model for development, progress, stability and prosperity.

Ismaeel A. Nabi Al Marhoon
Chairman
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Distinguished Shareholders of Bahrain Car Parks Company,

In my capacity and on behalf of the executive management, employees and all the
associates of the company, we offer you our warmest greetings and wish you and our
beloved country, Bahrain, a New Year full of prosperity and blessing. We would like to
hare our impression with you that this New Year will be a virtuous year, for the Company and its operational results,
that has been envisaged within the evolving open horizons of our revered Company, which is considered one of the

pioneering public shareholding companies in the Kingdom of Bahrain.

Distinguished Shareholders,

We believe that 2019 will be a remarkable year from the perspective of Company's strategic planning, performance
and operations, taking into consideration the important improvements that the Company has recently carried out as a
comprehensive modernization initiative to the technology and systems of the parking facilities managed throughout
the country. Such systems provide accurate and detailed data on vehicle admittance and parking exit status, thus
can be ultimately analyzed, in a way that enables us determine occupancy densities, peak times, vehicle niches, and
other important indicators of traffic such as space shortages and future needs for car spaces. 2018 developments
were not restricted to the technical aspects, but extended to the number of parking facilities managed by the
Company, which incretased by 60%, rising from about 915 parking spaces in 2017 to 1522 in 2018.

The most important development achieved this year was our partnership with Bahrain Real Estate Investment
Company (EDAMAH), as this partnership will have a far reaching prospect to the Company’s forthcoming business as
well as its development and future advancement.

We draw your kind attention to the (MOU) Memorandum of Understanding signed between Bahrain Car Parks
Company and EDAMAH, which allows the two organization to survey and investigate the necessary legal procedures
and evaluation process required for assessing the possibility of EDAMAH acquiring stakes in Bahrain Car Parks
Company in return for assigning a (99 years) usufruct rights of the “Terminal Building” owned by EDAMAH, which
falls within our strategy to expand our business positively where it will reflect back with a meaningful maximization

of value to our shareholders and enforce company financial position.

Distinguished Shareholders,

This Memorandum of Understanding, which will be subject to the necessary approvals from the regulatory
authorities, Shareholders and the Board of Directors, will establish a partnership and mutual support between
the two Companies. It stems out of the strategy adopted by Bahrain Car Parks Company that focuses continuously
on adding new projects to its business portfolio and opening up of new horizons of unlimited development, while

staying compliant with the international standards.
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Distinguished Shareholders,

We believe that success belongs to those who aspire to dream first, then to put their plan to perfection and mastery,
and finally work hard to achieve their plans and goals. We owe our Shareholders and Stakeholders every effort to
achieve their aspirations in the development of our Company.

On behalf of the whole team and myself, | express my sincere thanks and appreciation to our valued shareholders for
their confidence in the Management of the Company, its Executive and Administrative arm, and the venerated Board

of Directors of the Company for the continuous and unlimited support.

Tarig Ali Aljowder
Chief Executive Officer
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Corporate Governance Report for the Year 2018

1. Description of the actions taken to complete the Corporate Governance Code during the year 2018 and how
they were applied

Corporate Governance is about promoting corporate fairness, transparency and accountability. It is a continual process
which aims at transforming corporations into more democratic entities with a view to enhance responsible corporate
management geared towards long term value creation. Bahrain Car Parks Co B.S.C. is committed to continuously review

and enhance its Corporate Governance policies.

The Company identifies, assesses, monitors, controls and manages the various risks on an on-going basis and has
established systems, procedures and controls as are appropriate and commensurate to the nature, scale and complexity of
its business operations. There are clearly defined underwriting and claims processes with appropriate authority limits and
operational practices which are in line with market standards. The investment risks are clearly formulated and documented
in an Investment Policy Manual which has been thoroughly revised and approved by the Board. The Executive Committee

continuously monitors the investment portfolio and the risks involved and take proactive measures to mitigate the risks.

Internal control risks are controlled by having effective and adequate internal control systems in place which are tested on
aregular basis. The Executive committee is charged with the responsibility of ensuring that adequate internal controls are

in place to mitigate any existing or potential risks.

During year 2018, Bahrain Car Parks Company has appointed Corporate Governance Officer and registered officer’s
name in the MOICT online System “Sijilat” to disclose and ensures that the Company is complying with each rule of
the governance. Corporate Governance Report will be prepared annually in conformity with the Ministry of Industry,
Commerce and Tourism format and in accordance with the Corporate Governance Code 2018 and submitted electronically
to the Corporate Governance Section for evaluation and measuring the extent to which the company complies with the

rules of governance set out in the Code.

The Company has a written and approved corporate governance policies and procedures which is being reviewed and

updated periodically.

The Company prepares the Governance report as per the format provided by the Ministry and the same is reviewed in the
Company General Assembly meeting every year. Company ensures sufficient number of independent and non-executive
directors in the Board. Company has different specialized committees as per the Code and regulations.

The Company ensures reporting of related party transactions and non-compliance of any rule with reasons of non-

compliance. Also, the Company ensures rotation of Audit partners once in every three years.
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2. Description of the Transactions of the Directors, their Spouses and Sons on the Company’s Shares during

the Year 2018 are as follows:

Sr. Name Position/kinship Shares Heldas |  Total Sa_Ie Total Purchase
No. at31.12.2018 | Transaction Transaction

1 Ismaeel Abdul Nabi Al-Marhoon Chairman nil nil nil

2 Nabeel Khaled Mohammed Kanoo Vice -Chairman nil nil nil

3 Bader A.S Alhassawi Director nil nil nil

4 Ali Mohammed Buhamood Director nil nil nil

5 Ali Abdulla Mohamed Isa Director nil nil nil

6 Mohammed Abdulelah Alkoheji Director nil nil nil

7 Aamal Hamad Al-Zayani Director nil nil nil

8 Abdulla Nooruddin A. Nooruddin Director nil nil nil

9 Yaser Abduljalil Ali Alsharifi Director nil nil nil

10 | Yusuf Abdulrahman Fakhro Director 100,000 nil nil
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(b)

1. Total remunerations paid to the directors for the (last) year 2017 is BD 37,343/-.
2. The proposed total remunerations to be paid to the directors for the year 2018 which will be presented at

the annual general meeting for approval is BD 30,332.

3. Description of the sitting fees paid to the directors for attendance of the Board's committees for the

financial year 2018 according to the following table:

S Setting Fees Paid for The Attendance of The Board's Meeting
' Name —
No. _ Sitting _
Name of Committee Number of meetings
fee amount
Board Meetings 3,000 4
1 Ismaeel Abdul Nabi Al-Marhoon
NRGC 1,000 2
Board Meetings 1,500 3
2 Nabeel Khaled Mohammed Kanoo
NRGC 1,000 2
Board Meetings 1,500 3
3 Bader A.S Alhassawi
NRGC 1,000 2
Board Meetings 2,000 4
4 Ali Mohammed Buhamood
Executive meeting 1,500 3
Board Meetings 2,000 4
5 Ali Abdulla Mohamed lsa
Audit Committee meeting 2,500 5
Board Meetings 1,500 3
6 Mohammed Abdulelah Alkoheji
Audit Committee meeting 2,500 5
Board Meetings 500 1
7 Aamal Hamad Al-Zayani
Executive meeting 1,000 2
o | Abdulla Nooruddin Abdull Board Meetings 2,000 4
Nooruddin Executive meeting 1,500 3
Board Meetings 2,000 4
9 Yaser Abduljalil Ali Alsharifi
Executive meeting 1,500 3
Audit Committee meeting 2,500 5
10 | Yusuf Abdulrahman Fakhro
Board Meetings 2,000 4
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(c). Number and dates of the Board’'s meetings held during the financial year 2018, in addition to the number of
times directors attended in person or by visual communication and a description of the directors present by
proxy. The Company should hold a minimum of four board meetings during each year. During the year ended
31 December 2018, four board meetings were held. The following table summarizes the information about

Board of Directors meeting dates and attendance of directors at each meeting:

NS(r).. Board Meeting Members Designation Status Feter_ary Ai?r_il jjly Otjtzt;er
1 | Ismaeel Abdul Nabi Al-Marhoon | Chairman 22\/'\63'.27 P P P P
9 Nabeel Khaled Mohammed Vice -Chair- | Joined on p p A p

Kanoo man 22.03.17
3| Bader A.S Alhassawi Director | "y e0. " p p A P
4 | Ali Mohammed Buhamood Director | “0e0.C" p p p P
5 | Ali Abdulla Mohamed Isa Director | " ed C1 p p p p
6 | Mohammed Abdulelah Akoheji | Director | 00" p p A p
7 | Aamal Hamad Al-Zayani Director J2[)1]_r1083d_106n P A A A
8 Ql;dolstljlsdli\lnooruddin Abdulla Director J2o11.noe3d-106n P p P p
9 | Yaser Abduljalil Ali Alsharif Director J2°2‘f‘0‘33d_1°7” p p p p
10 | Yusuf Abdulrahman Fakhro Director | e O p P p p

P=Present A =Absent
One of the board members, Ms. Aamal Hamad AlZayani, has attended only 1 out of 4 board meetings held during 2018
and hence her attendance has fallen below 75% minimum attendance as required by CBB Rule Book Volume 6 on HC-High

Level controls. The absence was due to critical health reasons and she passed away on 25th October 2018.

The Board of Directors Meeting was carried out smoothly by the rest of the Board members in absence of Ms. Aamal

Hamad AlZayani. The chairman of the Board ensured that the objectives of the Board meeting were met and the Company
business were dealt appropriately.
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(d). Board’s duties and competences carried out on its behalf by the Executive Management by delegation of

authority, specifying the duration and validity of the delegation

The members of the Board of Directors are appointed or elected by the shareholders and each Director has a term of 3

years, renewable, thereafter, by re-appointment. The term of the current members of the Board of Directors will expire

this year. The Company has, however obtained an extension of six more months tenure from 22 March 2019 for the

existing directors.

New members to the Board are inducted during the first Board meeting during which time, a brief about the Company

and its operations are presented.

The duties and responsibilities of the Board include, but not limited to, the following:

© N o g &

10.

Review and approval of the Company’s business performance for the year including the overall strategies,
budgets and business plans for the subsequent years;

Monitor, on an on-going basis, the operational performance of the Company;

Monitor the risks faced by the Company and assess measures to address those risks in respect of the risk
management framework;

Ensure overall compliance of the Company to legal and statutory requirements;

Ensure the accuracy of the financial position of the Company;

Convening and preparing the agenda for shareholder meetings;

Monitoring conflicts of interest and preventing abusive related party transactions;

Selecting, compensating, monitoring and when necessary, replacing key executives and overseeing
succession planning;

Ensuring a formal and trans-group board nomination and election process in accordance with the rules and
regulations governing the Company;

Review of independence of the Board members at periodical intervals;

Ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting systems, including the
independent audit, and that appropriate systems of controls are in place, in particular, systems for risk
management, financial and operational control and compliance with the law and relevant standards;
Assuring equitable treatment of shareholders including minority shareholders;

Monitor and evaluate the performance of the management;

Monitor and evaluate the performance of each committee and each of the directors at periodical basis;
and

Review, on regular basis, the remuneration packages of senior management.
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(e). Details of transactions with related parties (stakeholders), indicating the nature of relationship and type of

transaction are as follows:

Type of Transaction Amount BHD
Director’s remuneration 30,332/-
Board of Directors Meeting fees 34,000/-
Any other related party transaction NIL

(f). The Company's Organisation Structure

NRCG Committee

Board of Directors Audit & Risk Committee |

Internal Auditor

Chief Executive Officer

Compliance Officer

Business Development
Director

Operations Director Finance Director HR & Admin Director

(g). Total remunerations paid to the key executive officers (the top five employees), including salaries,
benefits, allowances, increases, stock options, end-of-service benefits, pensions, etc. amounting to
BD 153,725/-:

Name of the Executive Member

Designation in the Company

Number of years' Experience

Tariq Ali Aljowder Chief Executive Officer 29
Ageel Abdulrahim Hasan Operation Director 18
Mahmood Sayed Hussain Yaseen Finance Director 17

4. External Auditors:

BDO is the auditor of the Company since 2002. BDO Bahrain was established in 1980. Today, BDO is one of the leading
accounting and advisory firms in Bahrain with their strengths firmly rooted in the region they serve.

Their reputation is founded on providing services in audit & assurance, internal audit & risk advisory, business advisory,
corporate legal and successfully won large assignments in operations outsourcing. BDO is a leading professional services
organization with an impressive heritage and a fresh innovative approach that enables them to help their clients build
value, manage risk and improve performance.

The Firm led by seven partners, have a diverse client base and their ability to tailor their services to the needs of
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public, private, government and international clients is fundamental to their approach. BDO's global organization extends
across 162 countries and territories, with 80,087 people working out of 1,591 offices —and they're all working towards one

goal: to provide their clients with exceptional service.

Name of the Audit Firm BDO
Years of service as the company’s external auditor Since 2002, 17 years
Name of the partner in charge of the Company’s audit Mr. Arshad Gadit

The partner’s years of service as the partner in charge of the company’s )
. years
audit

The information will be kept at corporate
. o office as confidential and can produce
Total audit fees for the financial statements for the year 2018 (BD)
on request by the shareholders after

approval of Board of Directors.

Other special fees and charges for non-audit services other than auditing

the financial statements for the year 2018 (BD) if any. In the absence of | 1,000/-

such fees, this shall be expressly stated”

* Non-audit services provided by BDO is agreed upon procedure report to the lease rent of the main car park building to
Bahrain Real Estate Investment (EDAMAH). The fees for the non-audit service provided by external auditor during 2018
are BD 1,000.

5. Executive Committee:

Roles and Responsibilities

Executive committee is formed with four members and at least two directors are to attend the meeting to ensure a
quorum. The minimum number of meetings required each year is four. The role of the committee is to assist the Board
in the discharge of its functions, assists the Board in reviewing quarterly Company performance, policies, practices,
various operational controls and Corporate Governance with the support of Internal and external auditors. The executive
committee also oversee the standards of quality and reliahility of the financial information submitted to the Board by the
management. The executive committee has the additional responsibility to ensuring strategic procurement objectives
are developed and implemented through an annual procurement strategy to ensue that major investment decisions are

procured strategically to enable prudent and efficient outcomes through market engagement.

One of the board members, Ms. Aamal Hamad AlZayani, has attended only 2 out of 3 board meetings held during 2018
and hence her attendance has fallen below 75% minimum attendance as required by CBB Rule Book Volume 6 on HC-High
Level controls. The absence was due to critical health reasons and she passed away on 25 October 2018.

The Board of Directors Meeting was carried out smoothly by the rest of the Board members in absence of Ms. Aamal
Hamad AlZayani. The chairman of the Board ensured that the objectives of the Board meeting were met and the Company

business were dealt appropriately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, four executive committee meetings were held. The following table summarizes the

information about executive committee meeting dates and attendance of directors at each meeting.

(Executive/
Sr. . ) Non-Executive ) ) 15- 28- 07- 10-
No. Executive Meeting Members Independent/ Designation Feb-18 | May-18 | Oct-18 Fep-19
Non-Independent)
s .| Non-Executive / Chairman
1 | Yaser Abduljalil Ali Alsharifi Independent wef22.03.17 P P P P
- Non-Executive / Director
2| AliMohammed Buhamood | oo |ndenendent | wef21.03.16 | ’ ’ ’
. Non-Executive / Director
3 | Aamal Hamad Al-Zayani Non Independent | w.e.f 18.03.13 ’ ’ A A
A Abdulla Nooruddin A. Non-Executive / Director p p p p
Nooruddin Non Independent | w.e.f 21.03.16
P = Present A = Absent

Total remuneration paid to the Executive Committee members during 2018 amounted to BD 5,500/- as basic fee.
6. Audit Committee:

Roles and Responsibilities

Audit committee is formed with three members and at least two directors are to attend the meeting to ensure a quorum.

The minimum number of meetings required each year is four. The duties of the audit committee are:
1.

o g B~ W

Recommends the appointment, compensation and oversight of the external and internal auditors and confirm their

independence;

Ensures co-ordination among the internal and external auditors;

Discuss the significant accounting and reporting issues for the financial year;

Discuss the important findings of audit investigations, audit suggestions and management response;

Review the risk management and compliance with legal requirements;

Ensure existence of appropriate financial and accounting policies, procedures, systems, internal controls, guidelines

in the Company; and

Ensure communication with the management that the interim and annual financial statements present a true and

fair view in all material respects

The External Auditors, BDO Public Accountants, present the annual audited financial statements and management report

to the Audit Committee upon invitation.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, five Audit committee meetings were held. The following table summarizes the

information about Audit committee meeting dates and attendance of directors at each meeting
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@
(Executive/
Sr. | Audit Committee Non-Executive N 14 24 07 17 14
Designation .
No. | Members Independent/ February |  April June July | October
Non-Independent)
Mohammed Abdul Non-Executive /| - Chairman
1 Elah Al Kooheii Non- Joined on P P P P P
4 ooneyt Independent 21.03.16
. Non-Executive / Director
2 f/:'ﬁbd“'(;al Non- Joinedon | P P p P p
ohamed s Independent 21.03.16
. Director
3 Yusuf Abdulrahman Non-Executive / Joined on P p p p p
Fakhroo Independent 220317
P = Present A = Absent

Total remuneration paid to the Audit Committee members during 2018 amounted to BD 7,500/- as basic fee.

7. Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) & Governance Committee (CG):

Roles and Responsibilities

The Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee comprises of three Board members selected and

appointed by the Board. The Committee meets at least twice a year. The role of the Committee is to assist the Board

in fulfilling its responsibilities with regard to the nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance policy of our

organization. The Committee also has the responsibility of reviewing and recommending the remuneration policies for the

Board of Directors and staff.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, two Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee meetings

were held. The following table summarizes the information about Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance

Committee meeting dates and attendance of directors at each meeting:

(Executive/ 21
Sr. |NRCG committee | Non-Executive | Designa- Qualification 17
No. | Members Independent/ tion Febru- October
Non-Independent) ary
N High Diploma in International Taxation,
on- . . R
lsmaeel Abdul Executive / Chairman | Southern I\/Ie’Fhodlst University - USA and
" | Nabi Al-Marhoan Non- we.f  |Management Diploma, Gulf Technical College-| P P
22.03.17 Bahrain, and MBA Financial Management,
Independent o
University of Dundee - UK.
Nabeel Khaled Non- Director , _ _
2 | Mohammed Executive / Joined M Bachelorts Dsig;e |n§usL|Jn§ss " P P
Kanoo Independent 290317 anagement - St. Edward's University
Non- Direct Diploma in Business Administration &
Bader A.S Executive / rector . P . .
3 . Joined Diploma in Computer Science from Seattle P P
Alhassawi Non- S
23.03.17 University (USA
Independent
P=Present A =Absent

Total remuneration paid to the Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee members
during 2018 amounted to BD 3,000/- as basic fee.
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8. Corporate governance officer's name, qualifications, date of appointment, and contact details:

Name

Qualification

Date of Appointment

Contact Details

Mr. Mahmood Sayed

Husain Yaseen

B.Sc. in Accounting, Certified
Public Accountant (CPA), Certified
Internal Auditor (CIA)

24 July, 2018

Tele: 17224477
Fax: 17224428

Email: myaseen@carparks,bh

9. Details of any irregularities committed during the financial year:

There were no irregularities committed or reported during the financial year 2018.

10. Description of the cash and in-kind contributions made by the company during the year 2018 for the

purpose of community development and environment preservation:

The charity contributions made during the year amounting to BD 2,500 and their distribution are as follows:
Bahraini Society for Child Development BD1,500/-
Bahrain Red Crescent Society BD1,000/-

a. Statement of shareholders’ equity as of 31/12/2018 (individuals, corporate, government or organizations) to

be classified as follows: Local, Gulf, Arab, and foreign:

Share Holder Classification Shareholding %
l?lld Individual Corporate %Or\ézrnr}g;?{gngr Total
1 | Local 15.38% 04.69% 52.67% 72.74%
2 | Arab 04.51% 22.75% 27.26%
3 | Foreign

Total 19.89% 21.44% 52.67% 100%

b. Description of the shareholders who hold 5% or more of the Company’s share capital, indicating the name

of the natural person who holds the shares, the final beneficiary, as at 31/12/2018 as follows:

S Name of the natural
N(lﬁ Name Number of Shares held Shareholding % persan,
' the final beneficiary
1 | Social Insurance Organisation 37,033,490 52.67% N/A
Kuwait Commercial Real
2 Estate Centre 15,000,000 21.33% N/A
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c. Description of how shareholders are distributed according to their respective shareholding as at 31/12/2018

as follows:
I\SI!)'. Share holding No of shareholders Number of Shares held Share Holding (%)
1 < 50,000 1291 3,691,653 5.25
2 50,000 to 500,000 33 5,368,318 7.63
3 500,000 to 5,000,000 10 24,223,769 34.45
4 > 5,000,000 2 37,033,490 52.67
Total 1,336 70,317,230 100%

d. Description of the significant events that occurred during the year 2018.

The Company and Bahrain Real Estate Investment Company
("Edamah”), real-estate arm of the sovereign wealth fund
of the Kingdom of Bahrain, have signed a Memorandum
of Understanding (“MOU") to evaluate potential grant of
a (99 years) usufruct right with automatic renewal in a
car park building owned by Edamah to the Company. The

consideration for transfer of such ownership and rights is

proposed to be settled through issuance of new shares in
the Company (“transaction”). The MoU allows for mutual
exploration of terms and pricing for transaction which,
if agreed, and subject to receipt of requisite regulatory,
shareholders and board approvals, may lead to Edamah

owing a stake in the Company.

Compliance with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code, as follows:

Explanation in
. Non- Partiall Full case of
Sl Principle On_ ar |a. y . y
No Compliant | Compliant | Compliant non-
compliance
1 Principle 1: The Company shall be headed by an Ves Explained
effective, qualified and expert board. below
9 Principle 2: The directors and executive manage- Yes Explained
ment shall have full loyalty to the company. below
Principle 3: The Board shall have rigorous controls Exolained
3 | for financial audit and reporting, internal contral, Yes bp |
and compliance with law. elow
Principle 4: The Company shall have effective pro- Exolained
4 | cedures for appointment, training, and evaluation of Yes bp |
the directors. elow
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®
Explanation in
- i case of
SI. Principle Non. Partlglly FuIIY
No Compliant | Compliant | Compliant non-
compliance
Principle 5: The Company shall remunerate directors Explained
5 ; . . . Yes
and senior officers fairly and responsibly. below
Principle 6: The Board shall establish a clear and
5 efficient management structure for the Company Ves Explained
and define the job titles, powers, roles and respon- below
sibilities.
Principle 7: The Company shall communicate with Explained
7 | shareholders, encourage their participation, and Yes bp |
respect their rights. elow
8 Principle 8: The Company shall disclose its corporate Ves Explained
governance. below
9 Principle 9: Companies which offer Islamic services N/A
shall adhere to the principles of Islamic Sharia. *
Principle 10: The Board shall ensure the integrity of
10 | the financial statements submitted to shareholders Yes
through appointment of external auditors.
Principle 11: The Company shall seek through social Explained
11 . - . Yes
responsibility to exercise its role as a good citizen. below

* Applicable only to the companies offering Islamic services.

Bahrain Car Parks Company B.S.C. currently complies with all the provisions of the Ministry of Industry and Commerce

Code with the exception which are explained below of the following:

Prin
effe

ciple 1: The Company shall be headed by an
ctive, qualified and expert board.

1. Principle 1 requires that the Company’s
Articles of Association (AOA) contains requirements
for executive, non-executive and independent
directors and that at least half of the directors are
non-executive directors and at least three of whom
are independent directors who meet the requirements
set forth in Appendix 1 of the Code. However, there

is a general clause given in the Company's Articles
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of Association (AOA) relating to the requirement of
executive, non-executive and independent directors.
As per the current Board composition, all Board
members are non-executive directors and three of
them are independent. The Company is in the process
of reviewing and amending the Articles of Association

(AOA) to include the necessary statements.

Principle 1 requires that the Company’s Chairman of

the Board of Directors is an independent director and
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that he is not the Company’s CEQ. The Chairman of
the BOD is a non-independent director and he is not
the Company's CEO. However, after one year of Board
of Directors election three Board members have
resigned and Mr. Ismaeel Almarhoon was the Deputy
Chairman at that time and the most knowable person
about the Car parks industries. The Board of Directors
have elected him by accumulation as a Chairman
and all regulating authoring has been informed.
Furthermore, the composition of the Board which is
70% appointed and 30% elected by the Shareholders,
which making it difficult to have the Chairman of the

Board of Directors to be an independent director.

Principle 1 requires that the Secretary should be
appointed to the Board and also requires that the Board
Secretary’s Statement of Duties and Responsibilities
should be in line with the minimum provisions as set
out in Principle 1 of the Code. The Board of Directors
are in the process of officially appointing a Board
Secretary. Currently, the Board Secretary duties and

responsibilities are carried out by the Company’s CEQ.

Principle 1 requires that the Board of Directors should
conduct an evaluation of its performances and the
performance of all committees and directors at least
once a year. However, the Board of Directors has
not conducted an annual evaluation of the Board
performance and the performance of all its committees
for the year. Further, shareholders are evaluating the
performance of the Board members and re-appointing

or nominating other members.

Principle 2: The directors and executive management
shall have full loyalty to the company.

1.

Principle 2 requires the Company’s to develop the
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code of ethics which meets the minimum requirements
as set out in principle 2 of the Code. The Company is

in the process of developing the code of ethics.

Principle 3: The Board shall have rigorous controls
for financial audit and reporting, internal control, and
compliance with law.

1.

Principle 3 requires that the Board Audit Committee
("BAC") shall consist of at least 3 directors, majority
of whom are independent, including the Chairman.
However, the Board Audit Committee (“BAC”) consists
of three directors. Two directors are non-independent
and one is independent. The current chairman of
the Audit Committee is a non-independent director.
The audit committee members and its Chairman
are elected by Board of Directors and due to the
composition of the Board which is 70% appointed
and 30% elected by the Shareholders, which makes it
difficult to have the majority of Board Audit Committee
("BAC") independent, including the Chairman.

Principle 3 requires that the Board should establish
a whistleblowing program that allows the Company’s
employees to report internally their concerns about
any improper or suspicious practices and make
appropriate arrangements for an independent and fair
investigation of such practices. The Board is in the

process of establishing the whistleblowing policy.

Principle 4: The Company shall have effective
procedures for appointment, training, and evaluation
of the directors.

1.

Principle 4 requires that the Nomination Committee
(“NC”) consists of at least 3 directors, all of whom
are independent or non-executive. However, the
Nomination Committee (“NC”) consists of three

directors. Out of three directors, two directors are

.
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non-independent and one is independent director. The
Nomination committee members and its Chairman are
elected by Board of Directors. Due to the composition
of the Board which is 70% appointed and 30% elected
by the Shareholders, which makes it difficult to have

the Nomination Committee (“NC”) all independent.

Principle 4 requires that the Chairman should ensure
that each new director receives a formal and tailored
induction to ensure effective participation in the
Board's activities from the beginning of his term.
Although there is no formal induction program. The
Company gives presentation and briefing to its new
Directors. The Company will develop a formal and

tailored induction program for its board member.

Principle 5: The Company shall remunerate directors
and senior officers fairly and responsibly.

1.

Principle 5 requires that Remuneration Committee
(“RC”) consists of at least 3 directors, the majority
of whom are independent or non-executive and that
the Chairman is an independent director. However,
the Remuneration Committee (“RC”) consists of three
directors. Out of three directors, two directors are
non-independent and one is independent director. The
Chairman of the Committee is also a non- independent
director. The Remuneration committee members and
its Chairman are elected by Board of Directors. Due to
the composition of the Board which is 70% appointed
and 30% elected by the Shareholders, which makes
it difficult to have the majority of the Nomination

Committee (“NC”) independent.

Principle 5 requires that Remuneration Committee
(“RC”) Statement of Duties and Responsibilities

should meet the minimum provisions as set out under
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Principle 5 of the Code as well as the purpose and
duties set forth in Appendix 4 of the Code. However,
the Company is in the process of reviewing and
updating the Remuneration Committee statements
of Duties and Responsibilities stated in the Corporate
Governance report to ensure its in line with the

provisions of Principle 5 of the Code.

Principle 6: The Board shall establish a clear and
efficient management structure for the Company and
definethejobtitles, powers, roles and responsibilities.

1.

Principle 6 requires that Board of Directors should
perform an annual review of the succession plan for
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ"). The Company is in
the process of formulating a succession plan for the

CEO which will be reviewed annually.

Principle 7: The Company shall communicate with
shareholders, encourage their participation, and
respect their rights.

1.

Principle 7 requires from the Company to assign
a specific section on its website to describe
shareholders’ right to participate and vote at each
shareholder's meeting, and to post significant
documents relating to meetings including invitations
and minutes. However, the Company has not assigned
a specific section on their website thereof to describe
shareholders’ rights to participate and vote at each
shareholder's meeting, and not posted significant
documents relating to meetings including invitations
and minutes. The Company is in the process of
reviewing and updating its website by incorporating

the new provisions in the Code.

Principle 8: The Company shall disclose its corporate
governance.

1.

Principle 8 requires from the Company to publish
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its Code on their website. The Company has not
published its Code on their website.

The Company is in the process of renovating
and redesigning the website and all the required
information to disclose the corporate governance will

be included accordingly.

2. Principle 8 requires that the Board Corporate
Governance Committee (“CGC") consists of at least
3 independent directors, who are responsible for
developing and recommending changes from time to
time in the Company’s corporate governance policy
framework. However, the Corporate Governance
Committee (“CCG") consists of three directors. Out of
three directors, two directors are non-independent and
one is independent director. Corporate Governance
Committee (“CGC") members and its Chairman are
elected by Board of Directors. In coming years, Board
will consider the independency requirements of the
Corporate Governance Committee members. Due to
the composition of the Board which is 70% appointed
and 30% elected hy the Shareholders, which makes
it difficult to have majority of the Board Corporate

Governance Committee (“CGC") are independent.

For Bahrain Car Parks Co. (B.S.C.),

Ismaeel Abdulnabi AIMarhoon
Chairman

14th March 2019
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Principle 11: The Company shall seek through social

responsibility to exercise its role as a good
citizen.

Principle 11 requires that the Company’s last annual
report shall contain a section on the Company's
corporate social responsibility activities.

However, the annual report did not contain any
specific section of the Company’s corporate social
responsibility activities. The Company is in the
process of developing a policy for Corporate Social
responsibilities which will be disclosed in the next

year report.

Principle 11 requires the Company to develop an
annual strategy or plan to implement the corporate
social  responsibility  philosophy, policies and
principles towards the community that include the
minimum requirements as set out under Principle 11
of the Code. Currently, the Company in the process
of formulating written strategy for corporate social
responsibility and to be approved by the Board of
Directors. However, each year the Company allocates

BD 10,000/- for charity.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders

Report on the audit of the financial Statement

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bahrain Car
Parks Company B.S.C. (“the Company”), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies. In our opinion, the
accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company
as at 31 December 2018, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“I[ESBA Code”) issued by International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with its
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Keyaudit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters. The key audit matters include:

Revenue recognition

The operating income as reported in Note 19 of the financial
statements includes rental income from car parks, service
charges in respect of investment properties, main building
car park and other related income. The Company focuses
on revenue as a key performance measure and by default,
this area has a fraud risk element and is therefore always
considered as a significant risk.

Our audit procedures included, considering the
appropriateness of the Company's revenue recognition
policies and assessing compliance with the policies in light
of the applicable accounting standards. We have tested
the effectiveness of internal controls implemented by the
Company over the revenue cycle and have also performed
analytical procedures over the revenue streams. We also

tested the relevant supporting documents on a sample

basis to confirm their reasonableness and accuracy.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

The Company has quoted and unquoted investments as
disclosed in Note 7 of the financial statements, which are
classified as financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income and form a significant balance
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in the financial statements. The fair value changes in
these instruments could have a material impact on the
Company's total comprehensive income and may result
in assets being misstated. Our audit procedures included:
testing of investments acquired and sold during the year
on a sample basis; testing ownership and classification;
and testing of the reasonableness of the fair values of the
quoted investments with the Bahrain Bourse and other
stock markets. The unquoted investments fair values were
based on other techniques adopted by the management.
We critically evaluate the valuation techniques used hy

the management for determining fair values.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the Chairman’s report and Corporate Governance report
but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and we

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and Those
Charged With Governance (TCWG) for the
financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair

presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
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International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are In preparing the financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged With Governance are responsible for

overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain  professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
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for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for

oneresulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control;

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements (continued)

e (btain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Company’s internal control;

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management;

e (Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease

to continue as a going concern; and

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements
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represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We
communicate with the management and TCWG
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide TCWG with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with TCWG, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit

of the financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements

(A) As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies

Law, Decree Number 21 of 2001, we report that:

1. we have obtained all the information we considered
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

2. the Company has carried out stock taking in
accordance with the recognised procedures, has

maintained proper books of account and the financial
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statements are in agreement therewith; and
the financial information included in the Chairman’s
report is consistent with the books of account of the

Company.

(B) As required by the Order No. (19) of 2018 issued on 29

March 2018 in respect of Article 8 of section 2 of Chapter

1 of the Bahrain Corporate Governance Code, we report

that;
1.

2.

Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain

13 February 2019

the Company has appointed a corporate governance
officer; and

the Company has a Board approved written guidance

IBDO

public Accountants

BDOo
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and procedures for corporate governance.

In addition, we report that, nothing has come to our
attention which causes us to believe that the Company
has breached any of the applicable provisions of the
Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, Decree Number
21 of 2001, the Central Bank of Bahrain (CBB) Rule
Book (applicable provisions of Volume 6) and CBB
directives, regulations and associated resolutions,
rules and procedures of the Bahrain Bourse or of its
Memorandum and Articles of Association, which
would materially affect its activities, or its financial

position as at 31 December 2018.
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®
Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Bahrain Dinars) Voarendad Yaar ended
Notes 2018 2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 2,893,817 2,934,605
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 7 3,348,492 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8 - 3,344,978
Investments at amortised cost 9 380,871 -
Held-to-maturity investments 10 - 380,871
Investment properties " 492,044 481,360
7,115,224 7141814
Current assets
Inventories 8,577 5,153
Short-term fixed deposits 12 4,674,496 5,375,417
Trade and other receivables 13 261,484 125,775
Cash and bank balances 14 1,606,559 756,175
6,551,116 6,262,520
Total assets 13,666,340 13,404,334
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 15 7,031,723 7,031,723
Treasury shares 15 (101,456) (101,456)
Statutory reserve 16 3,021,743 2,949,540
Charity reserve 12,400 4,900
Investment fair value reserve 3,514 -
Retained earnings 16 3,363,876 3,070,559
Total equity 13,331,800 12,955,266
Non-current liabilities
Employees’ terminal benefits 17 25,469 22,765
Current liabilities
Other payables 18 309,071 426,303
Total liabilities 334,540 449,068
Total equity and liabilities 13,666,340 13,404,334

These financial statements, set out on pages 34 to 70, were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13
February 2019 and signed on their behalf by:

— - __._LJ_;

Ismaeel A. Nabi Al-Marhoon Nabeel Khaled Mohammed Kanoo Tariq Ali Aljowder
gi Chairman Vice Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of profit or loss

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Bahrain Dinars)

Year ended Year ended

Notes 2018 2017
Operating income 19 1,220,166 1,112,047
Net income from investments 20 353,272 401,777
Operating, general and administrative expenses 21 (827,644) (712,595)
Operating profit 745,794 801,229
Other income 13,583 3,297
Directors’ remuneration 22 (37,343) (4,581)
Net profit for the year 722,034 799,945
Basic and diluted earnings per share 23 10 fils 12 fils

These financial statements, set out on pages 35 to 70, were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13

February 2019 and signed on their behalf by:

—f=

__i&:-;{;

Ismaeel A. Nabi Al-Marhoon Nabeel Khaled Mohammed Kanoo

Chairman

Vice Chairman

35

Tarig Ali Aljowder
Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of other comprehensive income

®
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Bahrain Dinars)

Year ended Year ended

Notes 2018 2017
Net profit for the year 722,034 799,945
Other comprehensive income
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Valuation gains on financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 7 3,514
Other comprehensive income for the year 3,514
Total comprehensive income for the year 725,548 799,945

These financial statements, set out on pages 36 to 74, were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13
February 2019 and signed on their behalf by:

Ismaeel A. Nabi Al-Marhoon Nabeel Khaled Mohammed Kanoo Tarig Ali Aljowder
Chairman Vice Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of changes in shareholder’s equity

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Bahrain Dinars)

Investment
Share  Treasury  Statutory Charity  fairvalue Retained
Notes capital shares reserve reserve reserve garnings Total
At 31 December 2016 7,031,723 (101,456) 2,869,545 5,900 2,107,123 12,512,835
Total comprehensive income
for the year - 799,945 799,945
Transferred to statutory reserve 16 79,995 (79,995) -
Dividends paid for 2016 24 (346,514) (346,514)
Charity reserve created during the year 25 10,000 (10,000) -
Charity payments made during the year (11,000) - (11,000)
At 31 December 2017 7,031,723 (101,456) 2,949,540 4,900 3,070,559 12,955,266
Total comprehensive income
for the year 3514 722,034 725,548
Transferred to statutory reserve 16 72,203 (72,203)
Dividends paid for 2017 24 (346,514) (346,514)
Charity reserve created during the year 25 10,000 (10,000)
Charity payments made during the year (2,500) (2,500)
At 31 December 2018 7,031,723 (101,456) 3,021,743 12,400 3514 3,363,876 13,331,800
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®
Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Bahrain Dinars) Year ended Year ended
Notes 2018 2017
Operating activities
Net profit for the year 722,034 799,945
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6 63,240 36,935
Unrealised fair value gains on investment properties " (10,684)
Unrealised fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 20 - (106,515)
Dividends income 20 (124,431) (110,501)
Interest income on held-to-maturity investments 20 - (25,922
Interest income on investments at amortised cost 20 (25,882)
Interest income on short-term fixed deposits 20 (178,944) (152,614)
Interest income on current account balance with a bank 20 (13,331) (6,225)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Inventories (3,424) 3,317
Trade and other receivables (135,709 313,187
Other payables (117,232) 92,370
Employees’ terminal benefits, net 2,704 (1,400)
Net cash provided by operating activities 178,341 842,51
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6 (22,452) (192,271)
Dividends received 20 124,431 110,501
Interest income on held-to-maturity investments 20 - 25,922
Interest income on Investments at amortised cost 20 25,882
Interest income received on short-term fixed deposits 20 178,944 152,614
Interest income received on current
account balance with a bank 20 13,331 6,225
Net movements in fixed deposits 700,921 (541,604)
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 1,021,057 (438,613)
Financing activities
Dividends for the year 24 (346,514) (346,514)
Charity payments (2,500) (11,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (349,014) (357,514)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 850,384 46,444
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 756,175 709,731
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 14 1,606,559 756,175
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Bahrain Dinars)

1. Organisation and Activities

Bahrain Car Parks Company B.S.C. (“the Company”) is a
public Bahraini shareholding company registered with
the Ministry of Industry and Commerce in the Kingdom
of Bahrain and operates under commercial registration
number 11455 obtained on 31 October 1981.

The principal activities of the Company include the
operation of car parks, real estate activities with own
or leased property and other marketing/promotional
activities.

The registered office of the Company is in the Kingdom of

Bahrain.

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) as promulgated by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”), interpretations issued by
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC"), the Central Bank of Bahrain (CBB)
Rule Book (applicable provisions of Volume 6) and the
requirements of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law,
Decree Number 21 of 2001 and associated resolutions,

rules and procedures of the Bahrain Bourse.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements have been prepared using
the going concern assumption under the historical
cost convention as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties and financial assets through other
comprehensive income (OCl) and financial assets at fair

Standard or

Interpretation Title

value through profit or loss at their fair values. The financial
statements have been presented in Bahrain Dinars which
is the functional currency of the Company.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
judgment in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. The areas requiring exercise of
judgment in applying Company’s accounting policies are

disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Improvements/amendments to IFRS/IAS
IFRS/IAS
numerous amendments to IFRS/IAS that the IASB considers
IFRS’

comprise amendments that result in accounting changes

Improvements/amendments  to contained

non-urgent but necessary. ‘Improvements to
to presentation, recognition or measurement purposes, as
well as terminology or editorial amendments related to a
variety of individual IFRS standards. The amendments are
effective for the Company’s future accounting period with

earlier adoption.

Standards, amendments and

effective and adopted in 2018

interpretations

The following new standard, amendment to existing
standard or interpretation to published standard is
mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning
1 January 2018 and has been adopted in the preparation

of these condensed interim financial information:

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

IFRS 9
IFRS 15

Financial instruments

Revenue from contracts with customers
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1 January 2018
1 January 2018
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Bahrain Dinars)

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 and 15 and related new accounting policies are disclosed below. The other standards
did not have any mentioned impact on the Company’s accounting policies and did not require retrospective adjustments.
Standards, amendments and interpretations effective and adopted in 2018 (continued)

IFRS 9 - “Financial Instruments”

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

The adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1 January 2018 has resulted in changes in accounting policies and
adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The new accounting policies are as set out below. In
accordance with the exemptions available as per the transitional provisions in IFRS 9, the standard is applied retrospectively

and the comparative figures have not been restated with differences being recorded in opening retained earnings.

Financial assets —impact of adoption
The overall effect of adopting IFRS 9 on the carrying amount as at 31 December 2017 and adjusting balance as at 1 January

2018 and each effecting line items in the financial statements along with corresponding 31 December 2018 balances are

as follows:
As reported On adoption
Statement of Financial Position under IAS 39 of IFRS 9 Under IFRS 9
Assets 31 December 2017 Effects 1 January 2018 31 December 2018
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note a) 3,344,978 (3,344,978) - -
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Note a) ) 3344978 3344978 3,348,492
Held-to-maturity investments (Note b)
380,871 (380,871) - -
Investments at amortised cost (Note b) ; 380,871 380,871 380,871
Equity
Retained earnings 3,070,559 - 3,070,559 3,363,876
Investment fair value reserve® - . . 3,514

*If these equity instruments had not been reclassified, the Company would have recognised a fair value gain of BD3,514
in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.
a) Reclassification from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Equity securities are measured at fair value and all changes in fair value are recognised in the statement of other

comprehensive income under IFRS 9. This category only includes equity instruments, which the Company intends to hold
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Bahrain Dinars)

2. Basis of preparation (continued)
for the foreseeable future and which the Company has irrevocably elected to so classify upon initial recognition or transition.

There was no impact on the amounts recognised in relation to these assets from the adoption of IFRS 9 as previously these

were classified at fair value through profit or loss as allowed under IAS 39.

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective and adopted in 2018 (continued)
Financial assets — impact of adoption (continued)

b) Reclassification from held-to-maturity to investments at amortised cost
Bonds which were previously classified as held-to-maturity amounting to BD380,871 are now classified at amortised
cost. The Company intends to hold these investments to maturity to collect contractual cash flows and these cash flows
consist solely of payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Therefore, for these held-to-
maturity investments there was no difference between the previous carrying amount and the revised carrying amount of
the other financial assets at 1 January 2018 to be recognised in opening retained earnings and only classification change

as Investments at amortised cost.

IFRS 15— “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related Interpretations and it applies to all revenue
arising from contracts with customers, unless those contracts are in the scope of other standards. The new standard
establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances
when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.

Upon transition to IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018, there was no material impact on the Company's financial position and results

of operations.

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective in 2018 but not relevant
The following new standards, amendments and interpretations issued by the IASB are effective for the first time for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 but have not been adopted as these are not considered to be relevant to the

Company's operation:
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Bahrain Dinars)

2. Basis of preparation (continued)
Effective for annual

Standard or periods beginning
Interpretation Title on or after
IAS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2018
IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting

Standards 1 January 2018
IAS 40 Investment properties 1 July 2018
IFRS 2 Share-based payment 1 January 2018
IFRS 4 Insurance contracts 1 January 2018
IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 1 January 2018

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective in 2018

The following new/amended accounting standards and interpretations have been issued, but are not mandatory for
financial year ended 31 December 2018. They have not been adopted in preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and will or may have an effect on the entity’s future financial statements. In all cases, the entity

intends to apply these standards from application date as indicated in the table below:

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective in 2018 (continued)

Effective for annual

Standard or periods beginning
Interpretation Title on or after
IAS 12 Income taxes 1 January 2019
IAS 19 Employee benefits 1 January 2019
IAS 23 Borrowing costs 1 January 2019
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2019
IFRS 3 Business combinations 1 January 2019
IFRS 11 Joint arrangements 1 January 2019
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
IFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2021
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019

There would have been no change in the operational results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 had
the Company early adopted any of the above standards applicable to the Company except for IFRS 16 (more disclosure in

operating lease policy below), the impact of which is being assessed by the Company.

FRS 16 - “Leases”
IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost all leases being recognised on the financial position, as the
distinction between operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased

item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

42



Bahrain Car Parks Company (B.S.C.)
Annual Report 2018

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Bahrain Dinars)

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
the Company’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Company has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments. However, the Company has not yet
determined to what extent these commitments will result
in the recognition of an asset and a liability for future
payments and how this will affect the Company’s profit
and classification of cash flows

Some of the commitments may be covered by the
exception for short-term and low-value leases and some
commitments may relate to arrangements that will not
qualify as leases under IFRS 16.

The standard is mandatory for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The Company does
not intend to early adopt the standard before its effective
date. The Company is working towards implementation of
IFRS 16 and intends to adopt this standard from 1 January
2019 and therefore will only recognise leases on balance
sheet as at 1 January 2019.

At 31 December 2018, operating lease commitments
under existing accounting standard IAS 17 amounted to
BD230,000 which may be different on adoption of IFRS 16
for the year ending 31 December 2019

Instead of recognising an operating expense for its
operating lease arrangements, the Company will recognise
finance cost on its lease liabilities and amortisation on its
right-of-use assets. This will increase reported EBITDA by

the amount of its operating lease cost.

Early adoption of amendments or standards in 2018
The Company did not early-adopt any new or amended

standards in 2018.
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3. Significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
in the preparation of these financial statements is set out
below. The policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, except for the change arising due to

adoption of IFRS 9 and 15.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated so as to write-off the cost
of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values on a straight-line basis over their expected
useful lives. Freehold land is not depreciated as it is
deemed to have an infinite useful life. The major classes
of depreciable assets with their estimated useful lives are
as follows:

Building on leasehold land - 30 years or the lease
period, whichever is lower
Car park and other equipment - 5years

Office furniture and equipment 4 years

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment are determined by reference to their carrying
amount and are taken into account in determining net
profit.

Repairs and renewals are charged to the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income when they
are incurred.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying values may not

be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where

the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Bahrain Dinars)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

amounts, the carrying amounts are written-down

immediately to their recoverable amounts.

Investments properties

Investment properties, representing a freehold building,
are held to earn long-term rental yields and for capital
appreciation.
Investment properties are treated as long-term
investments and are initially recorded at cost, including all
transaction costs. Subsequent expenditure relating to an
investment property is added to the carrying value when
it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of
the originally assessed standard of performance of the
existing investment property, will flow to the Company. All
other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are re-measured at fair values, representing open market
values determined annually by external property valuers,
and any unrealised fair value gains or losses arising
are included in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.
Fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
Investment properties are de-recognised when they have
either been disposed-off, or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit
is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the
de-recognition of an investment property are recognised

in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income in the year of de-recognition.
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Financial assets — Classification and measurement
The Company classifies its financial assets in to one of
the categories discussed below, depending on the purpose
for which assets was acquired. The Company’s accounting
policy for each category is as follows:
1. Fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI), and

2. Amortised cost.

Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The Company has a number of strategic investments in
listed and unlisted entities which are not accounted for as
subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities. For
those investments, the Company has made an irrevocable
election to classify the investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income rather than through profit or
loss as the Company considers this measurement to be
the most representative of the business model for these
assets. They are carried at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve. Upon disposal any balance within fair
value through other comprehensive income reserve
is reclassified directly to retained earnings and is not
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss, unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment, in which case the full or partial
amount of the dividend is recorded against the associated
investments carrying amount.

Purchases and sales of financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are recognised

on settlement date with any change in fair value between
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
trade date and settlement date being recognised in the

fair value through other comprehensive income reserve.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets carried at amortised cost are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction cost that are
directly attributable to their acquisition or issue and
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less, provision for impairment.
Categories of financial assets measured at amortised cost

are given below:

Investments at amortised cost

Investments at amortised cost represents investments
in debt instruments. The Company intends to hold these
investments to maturity in order to collect contractual cash
flows and these cash flows consist solely of payments of
principal and interest. They are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to their acquisition or issue, and are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method,
less provision for impairment.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Company’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in other gains/(losses), together
with foreign exchange gains and losses. If there are any
impairment losses, those are presented in the statement

of profit or loss.
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Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are carried at their anticipated
realisable values. The Company assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its trade receivables. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. The Company applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables. Impaired trade and other receivables
which are not considered recoverable are written-off

when they are identified.

Short-term fixed deposits

Short—term fixed deposits comprises of balances with
banks having original maturities of more than three months
but less than twelve months. The accrued interest on the
fixed deposits is recognised in the statement of profit or

loss over the period of the deposit.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand and current

account balances with banks.

Financial liabilities

The financial liahilities of the Company consist of other
payables. These financial liabilities are initially recognised
atfairvalue and are subsequently remeasured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Other payables

Other payables are recognised for amounts to be paid in
the future for goods or services received, whether billed by
the supplier or not.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a

present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
in future and the amount of the obligation can be reliably

estimated.

Employees’ terminal benefits
Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on
an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service is provided. A provision is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus
or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee and the obligation

can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefits

Employee benefits and entitlements to annual leave,
holiday, air passage and other short-term benefits are
recognised as they accrue to the employees. The Company
contributes to the pension scheme for Bahraini nationals
administered by the Social Insurance Organisation in the
Kingdom of Bahrain. This is a defined contribution pension
plan and the Company’s contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the year to which they relate.
In respect of this plan, the Company has a legal obligation
to pay the contributions as they fall due and no obligation
exists to pay the future benefits.

The expatriate employees of the Company are paid leaving
indemnity in accordance with the provisions of the Bahrain
Labour Law. The Company accrues for its liability in this

respect on an annual basis.

Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Company are
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classified as equity only to the extent that they do not
meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset.
The Company’'s ordinary shares are classified as equity

instruments.

Dividends and board remuneration

Dividends and board remuneration are recognised when
they become legally payable. In the case of interim
dividends to equity shareholders, this is recognised when
declared by the directors. In the case of final dividends and
board remuneration, this is recognised when approved by

the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Treasury shares

Shares of the Company repurchased at the statement of
financial position date are designated as treasury shares
until they are reissued or cancelled. The nominal value
of treasury shares are disclosed as a deduction from
reserves, with the difference between the nominal value of
the shares and their purchase cost being adjusted against
the retained earnings or the share premium account in the
statement of changes in shareholders” equity. Gains or
losses arising on the sale of treasury shares are recognised
in the consolidated statement of change in shareholders’

equity.

Leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
The aggregate benefit of lease incentives is recognised as
a reduction of the rental expense over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Services income

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.
For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based
on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting
period as a proportion of the total services to be provided,
because the customer receives and uses the benefits
simultaneously. In case of fixed-price contracts, the
customer pays the fixed amount based on a payment
schedule. If the services rendered exceed the payment,
a contract asset is recognised. If the payments exceed
the services rendered, a contract liability is recognised.
Most of the Company’s revenue is derived from fixed
price contracts and therefore the amount of revenue to be
earned from each contract is determined by reference to
those fixed prices. Customers are invoiced on a monthly

basis and consideration is payable when invoiced

Contribution to charities

Charities are approved by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting and contributions by the Company are
recognised and transferred to the charity reserve in the

year in which they are approved.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at
the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Gains and losses arising from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation, at the year-
end rates, of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies, are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in

terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
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using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on retranslation of non-monetary items
is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on

change in fair value of the item.

Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision maker has
been identified as the management team including the
Executive Committee members and the General Manager.
The Company's primary segment reporting format is
business segments. A business segment is a group of
assets and operations engaged in providing products
or services that are subject to risks and returns that are
different to those of other business segments. Dividends
and board remuneration are recognised when they
become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends
to equity shareholders, this is recognised when declared
by the directors. In the case of final dividends and board
remuneration, this is recognised when approved by the

shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

The Company’s primary business segments are:
° Car park services;
° Property rentals; and

e |nvestment and related services

A geographical segment is engaged in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment that
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those

of segments operating in other economic environments.
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4 Critical accounting judgments and key source of

estimation uncertainty

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS
requires the Company’s management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. The determination of estimates requires
judgments which are based on historical experience,
current and expected economic conditions, and all other
available information. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

The mostsignificantareas requiring the use of management

estimates and assumptions in these financial statements

relate to:
° economic useful lives of property, plant and
equipment;
° classification of investments;
° fair valuation of investments;
° fair valuation of investment properties;
° fair value measurement;
° impairment of assets;
° legal proceeding;
° going concern;
° provisions; and
° contingencies.

Economic useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Company's property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their economic
useful lives. Useful economic lives of property, plant and

equipment are reviewed by management periodically. The
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review is based on the current condition of the assets and
the estimated period during which they will continue to

bring economic benefit to the Company.

Classification of investments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies, management decides on acquisition of an
investment whether it should be classified as investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive or
in amortised cost. The classification of each investment
reflects the management’s intention in relation to
each investment and is subject to different accounting

treatments based on such classification.

Fair valuation of investments

The Company determines fairvalues of investments that are
not quoted in active markets by using valuation techniques
such as adjusted net asset valuation and recent transaction
prices. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time, based on market conditions and information about
the investee companies. These estimates are subjective in
nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgment and therefore, cannot be determined with
precision. There is no certainty about future events (such
as continued operating profits and financial strengths). It
Is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge, that
outcomes within the next financial year are different from
assumptions that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investments. In case where
adjusted net asset valuation models have been used to
estimate fair values, the adjustments to the net asset
values have been estimated by the management based on
information from and discussions with representatives of
the management of the investee companies, and based

on the latest available audited and un-audited financial
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4. Critical accounting judgments and key source of

estimation uncertainty (continued)

statements.

Fair valuation of investment properties

The Company obtains valuations performed by external
valuers in order to determine the fair value of its investment
properties. These valuations are based upon assumptions
including future rental income, anticipated maintenance
costs and the appropriate discount rate. The valuers also
make reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for similar properties. The level of activity in the investment
property market has been at a low level for the past few
years, primarily because of the reduced availability of
credit and, where credit is available, the increased cost
of borrowing. The lack of comparable market transactions
has resulted in a greater level of professional judgment
being relied upon in arriving at valuations. Changes in the
underlying assumptions could have a significant impact on

the fair values presented.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the financial

statements require measurement at, and/or disclosure of,

fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Company’s financial

and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market

observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used

in determining fair value measurements are categorised

into different levels based on how observable the inputs

used in the valuation technique utilised are (the "fair value

hierarchy’):

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted)

Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other
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than Level 1 inputs
Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).
The classification of an item into the above levels is based
on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of the item and
transfers of items between levels are recognised in the
period they occur.
The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company
that either require fair value measurements or only fair
value disclosures as at 31 December 2018 is shown in

Note 29.

Impairment of assets

(a) Financial assets

From 1 January 2018, the Company assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated with
its trade receivables and debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVTOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. The Company applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of

the receivables.

(b) Other non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's assets or its cash
generating unit, other than financial assets, are reviewed
at each statement of financial position date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. A cash
generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset that
generates cash flows that largely are independent from
other assets. If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount

of an asset or a cash generating unit is the greater of its j
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4. Critical accounting judgments and key source of

estimation uncertainty (continued)

value in use or fair value less costs to sell. An impairment
loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an
asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Impairment losses are reversed only if there is an
indication that the impairment loss may no longer exist
and there has been a change in the estimates used to

determine the recoverable amount.

Legal proceedings

The Company recognises a provision where there is a
present obligation from a past event, a transfer of economic
benefits is probable and the amount of costs of the transfer
can be estimated reliably. In instances where the criteria
are not met, a contingent liability may be disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. Obligations arising in
respect of contingent liahilities that have been disclosed
or those which are not currently recognised or disclosed,in
the financial statements could have a material effect
on the Company's financial position. Application of
these accounting principles to legal cases requires the
Company's management to make determinations about

various factual and legal matters beyond its control.

The Company reviews outstanding legal cases following
developments in the legal proceedings at each reporting
date, in order to assess the need for provisions and
disclosures in its financial statements. Among the
factors considered in making decisions on provisions are
the nature of litigation, claims or assessment, the legal

process and potential level of damages in the jurisdiction
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in which the litigation, claims or assessment has been
brought, the progress of the case (including the progress
after the date of the financial statements but before those
statements are issued), the opinions or views of legal
advisers, experience on similar cases and any decision of
the Company’s management as to how it will respond to

the litigation, claim or assessment.

Going concern

The management of the Company reviews the financial
position on a periodical basis and assesses the requirement
of any additional funding to meet the working capital
requirements and estimated funds required to meet the
liabilities as and when they become due. In addition, the
shareholders of the Company ensure that they provide
adequate financial support to fund the requirements of
the Company to ensure the going concern status of the

Company.

Provisions

The Company creates provision for impaired trade
receivables to account for estimated losses resulting from
the inability of customers to make the required payments.
At 31 December 2018, in the opinion of management a
provision of BD46,633(2017: BD46,633) is required towards
impaired trade receivables. IFRS 9 has fundamentally
changed the receivable loss impairment methodology. The
standard has replaced IAS 39's incurred loss approach with
a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach.
The allowance is based on the ECL associated with the
probability of default in the next twelve months unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the

probability of default over the life of the asset.
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4. Critical accounting judgments and key source of estimation uncertainty (continued)

The Company also creates provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories. At 31 December 2018, in the opinion of the
Company’s management, no provision is required towards slow-moving and obsolete inventories (2017: BDNil). Estimates
of net realisable value of inventories are based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made.
These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring subsequent to

the statement of financial position date to the extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of the period.

Contingencies
By their nature, contingencies will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment
of such contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment and estimates of the outcome of future

event.

5. Segmental information

Business segments — primary reporting segment

The Company's primary segment reporting format is business segment. A business segment is a group of assets and

operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different to those of

other business segments. The Company’s primary business segments are:

e (ar park services — This segment is involved in providing car parks for the public in return for parking charges and
contributes the largest proportion of the Company’s business, generating 37.85% (2017: 33.86%) of the Company's
revenue.

e Property rental income - This segment is involved in the management, maintenance and renting of properties. This
segment contributes 39.70% (2017: 39.60%) of the Company’s revenue.

e |nvestment and related services — This segment is involved in trading in financial assets and investing excess funds
in the primary and secondary market. This segment has contributed 22.45% (2017: 26.54%) of the Company's total

revenue.
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As at, and for the year ended, 31 December 2018
Car park services Property rental income  Investment

Main office Others Main office ~ Others services  Unallocated Total
Car park income (daily and cardholders) 524,806 70,752 595,558
Property rental income 490,032 490,032
Service charges income 134,576 134,576
Operating income 524,806 70,752 624,608 1,220,166
Net income from investments 353,272 353,272
Other income 13,583 13,583
Total revenue 524,806 84,335 624,608 353,272 1,587,021
Operating and general expenses (includ-
ing maintenance costs) 209,677 21,786 526,941 764,404
Depreciation (Note 6) 6,194 3,190 53,856 63,240
Total operating and general expenses
(including maintenance costs) 215871 30,976 580,797 827,644
Unallocated expenses 37,343 37,343
Total expenses 215871 30,976 580,797 37,343 864,987
Segment profits/{losses) 308,935 53,359 43,811 353,272 (37,343) 722,034
Reportable segment assets 427893 37,259 2,623,535 10,577,653 13,666,340
Reportable segment liahilities 5,028 47,174 256,869 309,071
Other segment information
Minimum operating lease commitment
(Note 27) 230,000 230,000
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5. Segmental information (continued)

As at, and for the year ended, 31 December 2017

Car park services Property rental income Investment

Main office Others Main office  Others services  Unallocated Total
Car park income (daily and cardholders) 456,325 56,255 - - - - 512,580
Property rental income - 483,219 - - - 483,219
Service charges income - - 116,248 - - - 116,248
Operating income 456,325 56,255 599,467 - - - 1,112,047
Net income from investments - - - - 401,771 - 401,771
Other income - 3,297 - - - - 3297
Total revenue 456,325 59,552 599,467 - 401,777 - 1517121
Operating and general expenses (includ-
ing maintenance costs) 119,279 8,992 547,389 - - - 675,660
Depreciation (Note 6) 3,128 681 33,126 - - - 36,935
Total operating and general expenses
(including maintenance costs) 122,407 9,673 580,515 - - - 712,595
Unallocated expenses - - - - - 4,581 4,581
Total expenses 122,407 9,673 580,515 - - 4,581 717,176
Segment profits/{losses) 333,918 49879 18,952 - 401,777 (4,581) 799,945
Reportable segment assets 315558 2,462,289 231,937 - 10,394,550 - 13404334
Reportable segment liabilities 1,613 9,093 438,362 - - - 449,068
Other segment information
Minimum operating lease commitment
(Note 27) 240,000 - - - - - 240,000

Geographical segments — secondary reporting segment
A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are
subject to risks and return that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

The Company's operations are restricted to the Kingdom of Bahrain; therefore no geographical segmental information has

been presented.
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6. Property, Plant and equipment
Office
Building on Car park furniture
Freehold leasehold and other and
land land equipment equipment Total
Cost
At 31 December 2016 2,487,226 8,138,413 15,525 62,869 10,704,033
Additions during the year - 158,824 33,447 192,271
At 31 December 2017 2,487,226 8,138,413 174,349 96,316 10,896,304
Additions during the year 14,682 7,770 22,452
At 31 December 2018 2,487,226 8,138,413 189,031 104,086 10,918,756
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2016 32,696 7,844,825 898 46,345 7,924,764
Charge for the year (Note 21) 18,352 9,160 9,423 36,935
At 31 December 2017 32,696 7,863,177 10,058 55,768 7,961,699
Charge for the year (Note 21) 18,352 29,807 15,081 63,240
At 31 December 2018 32,696 7,881,529 39,865 70,849 8,024,939
Net book amount
At 31 December 2018 2,454,530 256,884 149,166 33,237 2,893,817
At 31 December 2017 2,454,530 275,236 164,291 40,548 2,934,605

The land on which the car park building is constructed has been leased from the Government of the Kingdom of Bahrain for

a period of 50 years commencing from the year 1982 (Note 27).
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7 Investments in fair value through other comprehensive income

Reclassification from Financial assets at fair value through

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

profit or loss on adoption of IFRS 9 (Note 8) 3,344,978
Unrealised fair value gain recognised in

statement of other comprehensive income 3,514
Closing balance 3,348,492

The above investments are further classified as follows:

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Shares listed on the Bahrain Bourse 2,551,441
Unquoted equity shares 797,051
3,348,492

The investment categorised as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are denominated in the following
currencies:

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Currency

United States Dollar 721,575

Bahrain Dinar 2,626,917
3,348,492

The fair value of quoted investments is based on published market prices. The fair value of the unquoted investments is

based on the net assets taken from the latest available audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Any changes in the net assets of the investee companies during 2018 would be reflected in Company’s 2019 financial

statements upon receipt of the most recent financial information.

8 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Opening balance 3,344,978 3,238,463
Transferred to Investments in fair value through

other comprehensive income on adoption of IFRS 9 (Note 7) (3,344,978)
Unrealised fair value gains for the year 106,515
Closing balance 3,344,978
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10

1

12

Investments at amortised cost
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Reclassified from held-to-maturity investments
on adoption of IFRS 9 (Note 10) 380,871

Amortised cost investments represent bonds (Ahli United Bank Perpetual Tier 1 Capital Securities) carrying coupon

interest of 6.875%, having maturity period of 5 years and are denominated in United States Dollars.

Held-to-maturity investments

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Opening balance 380,871 380,871
Transferred to Investments at amortised cost

on adoption of IFRS 9 (Note 9) (380,871)

Closing balance - 380,871

Investment properties
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Opening balance 481,360 481,360
Unrealised fair value gains for the year (Note 20) 10,684
Closing balance 492,044 481,360

During the year, the Company has carried out independent valuation from Apex Real Estate for the freehold lands and
the fair value of the properties as per valuation report based on recent open market price, amounted to BD492,044.
Accordingly, a fair value gain amounting to BD10,684 was recognised during the year.

Short-term fixed deposits
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Fixed deposit with banks maturing after 3 months
but within 1 year 4,674,496 5,375,417

Short-term fixed deposits held with the Company’s bankers earn interest at rates ranging between 4.00% and 5.00%
per annum (2017: between 1.95% and 4.00% per annum) for the short term deposits are denominated in Bahrain

Dinars and have maturities ranging between three months to one year.
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13 Trade and other receivables

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Rents receivable from tenants 198,700 106,821
Less: provision for impaired rents receivable from tenants (46,633) (46,633)

152,067 60,188
Accrued interest 75,971 54,469
Advances paid to creditors 14,589 4,066
Staff advances 4,000 4,000
Prepayments and other receivables 14,857 3,052

261,484 125,775

The Company’s rent receivables are generally on 30 days credit terms and are primarily denominated in Bahrain Dinar.
The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime expected credit
loss provision for trade receivables. To measure expected credit losses on a collective basis, trade receivables parties are
grouped based on similar credit risk and aging.

The expected loss rates are based on the Company's historical credit losses experienced over a year period prior to the
period end. The historical loss rates are then adjusted for current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the Company’s customers. The Company has identified the gross domestic product (GDP) and inflation rate
as the key macroeconomic factors in the countries where the Company operates.

On that basis, the allowance as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018 (on adoption of IFRS 9) was determined as

follows for trade receivables:

31 30 days 90 days 180 days 360 days Above 360
December 2018 overdue overdue overdue overdue days Total
Expected loss rate 2% 5% 6% 17% 100.00%
Trade receivables 31,148 80,734 4,314 32,936 49,569 198,701
Loss allowance 686 4,204 281 5,630 49,569 60,370
1 30 days 90 days 180 days 360 days Above 360
January 2018 overdue overdue overdue overdue days Total
Expected loss rate 0.19% 6.60% 36.79% 76.30% 100% 106,821
Trade receivables 22,072 37,340 425 4,685 42,299 48,536
Loss allowance 42 2,464 156 3,575 42,299
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13 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The Company maintained their provision of BD46,633 as at 1 January and 31 December 2018 as the expected loss
allowances of BD48,536 and BD60,370 respectively, is not materially different.

The movement in provision for impaired rents receivables from tenants is as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

At 31 December 46,633 46,633

Unimpaired rents receivable are expected, on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable. It is not the practice
of the Company to obtain collateral over rents receivable and these are all unsecured. In the opinion of the Company’s

management, the fair values of the trade and other receivables approximate to their carrying values

14 Cash and bank balances
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Cash on hand 780 477
Current account balances with banks 1,605,779 755,698
1,606,559 756,175

The current account balances with banks earn interest rate ranging from 0% to 2.5% per annum (2017: 0% to 2.5%

per annum).

15 Share capital
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Authorised:
100,000,000 ordinary shares of 100 fils each
(2017: 100,000,000 ordinary shares of 100 fils each) 10,000,000 10,000,000

Issued and fully paid-up:
70,317,230 ordinary shares of 100 fils each

(2017: 70,317,230 ordinary shares of 100 fils each) 7,031,723 7,031,723

Less:

Purchase of 1,014,559 treasury shares

of 100 fils each (2017: 1,014,559 treasury shares of 100 fils each) (101,456) (101,456)
6,930, 267 6,930,267
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15. Share Captial (Continued)

Additional information on shareholding pattern
(i)  The names and nationalities of the major shareholders and the number of shares held which constitute an interest of

5% or more of the outstanding shares are as follows:
At 31 December 2018

Number Percentage of

Nationality of shares shareholding interest

Social Insurance Organisation Bahraini 37,033,490 52.67%
Kuwait Commercial Real Estate Centre Kuwaiti 15,000,000 21.33%

At 31 December 2018

Number Percentage of

Nationality of shares shareholding interest

Social Insurance Organisation Bahraini 37,033,490 52.67%
Kuwait Commercial Real Estate Centre Kuwaiti 15,000,000 21.33%

(i) The Company has only one class of equity shares and the holders of the shares have equal voting rights.
(i) The distribution schedule of equity shares, setting out the number of shareholders and percentages in the

following categories, is as follows:
At 31 December 2018

Number Number Percentage of total

of shareholders of shares outstanding shares

Less than 1% 1,326 10,762,283 15.30%
1% and up to less than 5% 4 7,521,457 10.70%
5% and above 2 52,033,490 74.00%
1,332 70,317,230 100.00%

At 31 December 2017

Number Number Percentage of total

of shareholders of shares outstanding shares

Less than 1% 1,303 10,762,283 15.30%
1% and up to less than 5% 4 7,521,457 10.70%
5% and above 2 52,033,490 74.00%
1,309 70,317,230 100.00%
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15. Share Captial (Continued)
(iv) The details of number of shares held by the Directors of the Company at 31 December is as follows
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Number of shares Number of shares
Yusuf Abdulrahman Fakhro 100,000 100,000

16. Reserves

a) Statutory reserve
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Opening balance 2,949,540 2,869,545
Transferred during the year 72,203 79,995
Closing balance 3,021,743 2,949,540

In accordance with the provisions of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, Decree Number 21 of 2001, an amount
equivalent to 10% of the Company’s net profit before appropriations is required to be transferred to a non-distributable
reserve account until such time as a minimum of 50% of the issued share capital is set aside. The reserve is not available
for distribution except for dividend payment as permitted by Bahrain Commercial Companies Law.

b) Retained Earnings 31 December 2018 31 Decerber 2017
Opening balance 3,070,559 2,707,123
Net profit and total comprehensive income for the year 722,034 799,945
Dividends declared (Note 24) (346,514) (346,514)
Transferred to statutory reserve (72,203) (79,995)
Charity reserve created during the year (10,000) (10,000)
Closing balance 3,363,876 3,070,559

17. Employee’s Terminal Benefits
Local employees The contributions made by the Company towards the pension scheme for Bahraini nationals
administered by the Social Insurance Organisation in the Kingdom of Bahrain for the year ended 31 December 2018

amounted to BD18,465 (2017: BD19,749).
Expatriate employees The movement in the leaving indemnity liability applicable to expatriate employees is as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Opening balance 22,765 24171
Accruals for the year 5,215 5,460
Payments during the year (2,511) (6,866)
Closing balance 25,469 22,765
The number of staff employed by the Company 20 18
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18. Other payables

(iv) The details of number of shares held by the Directors of the Company at 31 December is as follows

Year ended
31 December 2018

Year ended
31 December 2017

Other payables 196,769 339,980
Unclaimed dividends 91,386 74,718
Advances received from tenants 4784 1,619
Provision for leave salary and air passage 16,132 9,986
309,071 426,303
In the opinion of the management, the fair values of the other payables approximate to their carrying values.
19. Operating income
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Rental income 490,032 483,219
Main building car park income 524,806 456,325
Other car park income 70,752 56,255
Service charges income 134,576 116,248
1,220,166 1,112,047
20 Netincome from investments
Year ended Year ended

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Interest on short-term fixed deposits 178,944 152,614
Dividend income 124,431 110,501
Interest income on investments at amortised cost 25,882 -
Interest income on held-to-maturity investments 25,922
Interest on current account balance with banks 13,331 6,225
Unrealised fair value gains on investment properties (Note 11) 10,684 -

Unrealised fair value gains on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss 106,515
353,272 401,777
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21 Operating, general and administrative expenses
Year ended Year ended

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Staff costs 292,482 247,079
Electricity and water charges 128,817 136,229
Other operating, general and administrative expenses 116,749 72,659
Lease rent expenses (Note 27) 115,504 101,596
Maintenance costs 77,852 64,997
Depreciation (Note 6) 63,240 36,935
Directors’ sitting fees 33,000 53,100

827,644 712,595

22. Directors’ remuneration

Accrued and expensed

An amount of BD37,343 has been accrued and expensed as directors remuneration in 2018, relating to the year ended 31
December 2017 (2017: BD4,581 for the year ended 31 December 2016). The payment was approved by the shareholders in
the Annual General Meeting held on 22 March 2018 (2016: 22 March 2017). Directors’ remuneration is only expensed in

the statement of profit or loss in the year in which it is approved.

Proposed by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed to pay a Directors’ remuneration of BD30,332 for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: BD37,343) for the year 31 December 2017). Such proposed remuneration only becomes payable
once it has been approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting, and accordingly, has not been accounted

for in these financial statements.

23 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the shareholders by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares issued during the year.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Net profit attributable to the shareholders 722,034 799,945
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Note 15) 69,302,670 69,302,670
Basic and diluted earnings per share 10 fils 12 fils

The Company does not have any potentially dilutive ordinary shares, hence the diluted earnings per share and basic
earnings per share are identical.
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24 Dividends
Declared and paid

A dividend of BD346,514 representing 5% of the total issued and fully paid-up share capital of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (at 5 fils per share) (2017: BD346,514 for the year ended 31 December 2016 at 5 fils per share),
was approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders held on 22 March 2018 (2016: 22
March 2017), declared and subsequently paid.

Proposed by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed a dividend of BD346,514 (2017: BD346,514) representing 5% of the
total issued and fully paid-up share capital of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 at 5 fils per share (2017:
at 5 fils per share). The proposed dividend only becomes payable once it has been approved by the shareholders in the

Annual General Meeting and accordingly, the proposed dividend has not been accounted for in these financial statements.

25 Contribution to charity

Proposed by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed charity contributions of BD10,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: BD10,000).

26 Transactions and balances with related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Related parties include the shareholders, directors,
key management personnel and their close family members and such other companies over which the Company or its
shareholders, directors, key management personnel and their close family members can exercise significant influence or
can be significantly influenced by those parties. Transactions with the related parties are authorised by the management
and are on arm’s length basis.

The following is a summary of the significant transactions entered into with the related parties during the year ended 31

December;
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2018 31 December 2018
Directors’ remuneration 37,343 4,581
Board of directors meeting attendance fee 33,000 53,100

Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Company, including the directors of the Company.
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27 Lease commitments

The annual rent for the land upon which the car park building is situated is revised every ten years; the amount payable
being the higher of a fixed element increase or a percentage of the Company's gross operating profit. The current year's
charge of BD115,504 (20% of the gross operating profit generated), is included under operating, general and administrative
expenses (Note 21) (2017: BD101,596).

The minimum lease commitments under the mentioned non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Less than 1 year 10,000 10,000
More than 1 year and less than 5 years 60,000 40,000
More than 5 years 160,000 190,000

230,000 240,000

28 Capital commitments

The Company does not have any capital commitments as at 31 December 2018 (2017: BDNIil).

29 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management

Financial assets and liabilities carried on the statement of financial position include cash and bank balances, Short-term
fixed deposits, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, amortised cost investments, trade and
other receivables excluding prepayments and other payables excluding employees’ benefits. The particular recognition

methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

Capital management
The Company’s objectives when maintaining capital are:
e to safeguard the entity’s ahility to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and
e to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services that commensurate with the level
of risk.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company
includes within net debt, other payables less cash and bank balances. Capital includes share capital and reserves

attributable to the shareholders of the Company.
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29 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

31 December 2018

31 December 2018

Other payables 309,071 426,303
Less: cash and bank balances (1,606,559) (756,175)
Net surplus (1,297,488) (329,872)
Share capital, net of treasury shares 6,930,267 6,930,267
Statutory reserve 3,021,743 2,949,540
Charity reserve 12,400 4,900
Investment fair value reserve 3,514

Retained earnings 3,363,876 3,070,559
Total capital 13,331,800 12,955,266
Total capital and net surplus 12,034,312 12,625,394

The Company does not have any debt at 31 December 2018 and 2017 therefore the calculation of capital gearing ratio was

not considered necessary.

Risk management is carried out by the Finance Department of the Company under policies approved by the Board of

Directors. The Company’s Finance Department evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the Company’s operating

units. The Directors provide principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas.

Principal financial instruments

The principal financial instruments used by the Company, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments

Short-term fixed deposits

Cash and bank balances

Other payables excluding employee benefits

A summary of the financial instruments held by category is provided below as at 31 December 2018

65



Bahrain Car Parks Company (B.S.C.)
Annual Report 2018

[ )
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Bahrain Dinars)
29 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)
Financial assets Financial assets at
at fair value through OCI amortised cost
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through OCI 3,348,492
Investments at amortised cost - 380,871
Trade and other receivables excluding
Prepayments - 236,976
Short-term fixed deposits - 4,674,496
Cash and bank balances - 1,606,559
Total financial assets 3,348,492 6,898,902

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other payables, excluding
employee benefits 309,071

Total financial liabilities 309,071

A summary of the financial instruments held by category is provided below as at 31 December 2017:

Loans and Financial assets at ~ Held to maturity
receivables  fair value through profit or loss investments
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 3,344,978
Held-to-maturity investments - - 380,871
Trade and other receivables excluding
Prepayments 114,657
Short-term fixed deposits 5,375,417
Cash and bank balances 756,175

Total financial assets 6,246,249 3,344,978 380,871
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29 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)
Financial liahilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other payables, excluding 426,303

employee benefits

Total financial liabilities 426,303

Risk management (continued)

Credit risk is the risk that one party will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows of debt investments carried at amortised cost,
as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables. The Company’s bank balances and short-term
fixed deposits are placed with national and multinational banks with good credit ratings. The Company’s investments are
placed with national banks which have good credit ratings and other companies listed in the stock exchanges. Concentration
of credit risk with respect to rents receivable from tenants is limited due to the Company’s large number of tenants. The
Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. Further, the entity’s debt investments at amortised cost are considered to have low
credit risk. Due to this factor, management believes that no additional credit risk beyond amounts provided for collection
losses is inherent in the Company’s trade receivables.

The Company does not enter into derivatives to manage credit risk, although in certain isolated cases may take steps
to mitigate such risks if it is sufficiently concentrated. Quantitative disclosures of the credit risk exposure in relation to
financial assets are set out below. Further disclosures regarding trade and other receivables, which are neither past due

nor impaired, are provided in Note 13 to these financial statement
At 31 December 2018

Financial assets Carrying value Maximum exposure
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments 236,976 236,976
Short-term fixed deposits 4,674,496 4,674,496
Cash and bank balances 1,606,559 1,605,779
Total financial assets 6,518,031 6,517,251

At 31 December 2017

Financial assets Carrying value Maximum exposure
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments 114,657 114,657
Short-term fixed deposits 5,375,417 5,375,417
Cash and bank balances 756,175 755,698
Total financial assets 6,246,249 6,245,772
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29 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
Amortised cost investments, Short-term fixed deposits and current account earn fixed rates of interest. The Company's
other assets and liabilities, in the opinion of the Company’s management, are not considered to be sensitive to interest
rate risk. The hypothetical effect of 100 basis points interest rate increase or decrease on profits would be approximately
BD16,066 (2017: BD7,562).

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.
Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring on a regular basis to help ensure that sufficient funds are available, to meet all
liahilities as they fall due.

The following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual cash flows) of non-derivative

financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to make payments.

At 31 December 2018 Less than 1 year Total
Non-interest bearing instruments 288,155 288,155
At 31 December 2017 Less than 1 year Total
Non-interest bearing instruments 414,698 414,698

Price risk is the risk that the Company is exposed to listed securities price risk because of investments held by the
Company and classified in the statement of financial position as financial assets through other comprehensive income. To
manage its price risk arising from investments in listed securities, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of
the portfolio is achieved in accordance with the limits set by the Company.

Investment fair value sensitivity analysis is as follows
Impact on equity
Description Change 31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Quoted financial assets through OCI +/-5% +/- 127,572 +/- 143,611

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in interest rate, currency rate,
and equity price risk. The Company closely monitors the market forces and suitably revises the strategy to minimize the
market risk.

Currency rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange

rates. The Company's financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are primarily in United States
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29 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)

Dollars and Bahrain Dinar. The Bahrain Dinar is effectively pegged to the United States Dollar. Accordingly management
assesses the Company’s exposure to currency rate risk as insignificant.

Operational risk is the exposure to loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
external events. The Company seeks to minimise this risk by continuous framing policies and procedures to identify,
control and manage these risks.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value on recurring basis include trade and other receivables excluding
prepayments, cash and bank balances, Short-term fixed deposits and other payables excluding employees’ benefits. In the
opinion of the management, due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments, the fair value of these financial
instruments is not significantly different from their carrying amounts as at 31 December 2018.

The following table sets out the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value on recurring basis along
with valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value measurement of financial

instruments as well as the inter-relationship between unobservable inputs and fair value:

Valuation Significant Inter-relationship
Fairvalueat Levelof  technique used unobservable between unobservable
31 December  hierarchy  and key inputs Inputs inputs and fair value
Non-financial assets
Investment prop- 492,044 L2 Independent Current market ~ Positive correlation
erties (2017: 481,360) valuation report rates between market rates

and fair values

Financial assets

Quoted 2,551,441 L1 Quoted prices from Not applicable ~ Not applicable
investments (2017: 2,872,221) stock exchanges
Unquoted investments 797,051 L3 Net assets of the Expected revenue  The higher the revenue
(2017: 472,757) investee companies  and profit growth  growth rate, the higher the
based on 2017 rates takinginto  fair value
audited financial account manage-
information ment knowledge
and experience of
market conditions
similar to industry
trends
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29 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (continued)
There are no transfers between levels during the year.

The reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balance of level 3 financial instruments is provided below:

Unquoted investments

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Closing balance 797,051 472,757

Investment risk is defined as the uncertainty about the future benefits to be realised from an investment. The Company
has well-defined policies for managing investment risk. These policies cover investment authority limits and investment
assessment practices. The Finance Department study the impact of transactions on the Company's statement of financial
position and monitor the investment portfolio on a continuous basis. Every investment application is reviewed by a
designated body depending on the size and the nature of the transaction. Fair valuation is generally conducted on a

quarterly basis.

Legal risk includes the risk of unexpected losses from transactions and/or contracts not being enforceable under applicable

laws or from unsound documentation. The Company deals with external law firm to support it in managing the legal risk.

Reputation risk is the risk that negative perception regarding the Company’s business practices or internal controls,
whether true or not, will cause a decline in the Company's investor base and lead to costly litigations which could have an
adverse impact on the liquidity of the Company. The Board of Directors examines the issues that are considered to have

reputation repercussions for the Company and issues directives to address these.

30 Subsequent events
There were no significant events subsequent to 31 December 2018 and occurring before the date of signing of the financial

statements that would have a significant impact on these financial statements.
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